
Contacting the Council: Switchboard 01782 717717 .  Text 07800 140048 
Email webmaster@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk.  www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

Castle House
Barracks Road
Newcastle-under-Lyme
Staffordshire
ST5 1BL

Finance, Assets & Performance Scrutiny 
Committee

AGENDA

PART 1 – OPEN AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES  
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 6)

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2018

4 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2018/19 - UPDATE  (Pages 7 - 32)
5 MODERN SLAVERY UPDATE REPORT  (Pages 33 - 36)
6 WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 37 - 40)
7 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

Any member of the public wishing to submit a question must serve two clear days’ notice, 
in writing, of any such question to the Borough Council

8 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
Monday 17 December 2018 (7:00pm)

Members: Councillors Burnett, John Cooper, Fear, Fox-Hewitt, Harrison, Johnson, 
Kearon, Pickup (Vice-Chair), Proctor, Stubbs (Chair) and P Waring

Members of the Council: If you identify any personal training/development requirements from any of  the 
items included in this agenda or through issues raised during the meeting, please bring them to the 
attention of the Democratic Services Officer at the close of the meeting.

Date of 
meeting

Thursday, 20th September, 2018

Time 7.00 pm

Venue Astley Room - Castle House

Contact Jayne Briscoe 2250

Public Document Pack

mailto:webmaster@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk


Meeting Quorums :- 16+= 5 Members; 10-15=4 Members; 5-9=3 Members; 5 or less = 2 Members.
FIELD_TITLE

Officers will be in attendance prior to the meeting for informal discussions on agenda items.

NOTE: THERE ARE NO FIRE DRILLS PLANNED FOR THIS EVENING SO IF THE FIRE ALARM 
DOES SOUND, PLEASE LEAVE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY THROUGH THE FIRE EXIT 
DOORS.

ON EXITING THE BUILDING, PLEASE ASSEMBLE AT THE FRONT OF THE BUILDING BY THE 
STATUE OF QUEEN VICTORIA. DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL ADVISED TO DO SO.



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Finance, Assets & Performance Scrutiny Committee - 28/06/18

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
1

FINANCE, ASSETS & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Thursday, 28th June, 2018
Time of Commencement: 6.30 pm

Present:- Councillor Mike Stubbs – in the Chair

Councillors

Officers

Also in attendance 
as Observers

Burnett, John Cooper, Johnson, Kearon, Pickup, Proctor and 
P Waring

Executive Director Operational Services- David Adams, Head 
of Planning and Development - Guy Benson, Partnerships 
Manager - Sarah Moore, Head of Operations - Roger Tait and 
Executive Director (Resources and Support Services) - Kelvin 
Turner

Councillor Sweeney (Deputy Leader/Portfolio Holder for 
Finance and Efficiency) and M Holland (Portfolio Holder for 
Leisure and Culture).

1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Councillors Fear, Fox-Hewitt and Harrison.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest submitted on this occasion.
.

3. TERMS OF REFERENCE 

The Acting Chief Executive submitted Draft Terms of Reference for the newly 
constituted Finance, Assets and Performance Scrutiny Committee explaining that 
they followed a standard format being recommended for adoption by all three newly 
created Scrutiny Committees. The Terms of Reference reflected the main aims and 
responsibilities of Scrutiny Committees under the Local Government Act 2000 and 
included reference to existing procedural rules in the Council’s Constitution, 
Members discussed the need for flexibility for the Committee both in terms of its remit 
and frequency of meetings.

RESOLVED: (i) That the Terms of Reference be approved and
reviewed either as part of a review of the Constitution 
or after 12 months of operation whichever is more 
timely,

(ii) That the principle of having no more than 3 active 
Working Groups/Task and Finish Groups/Scrutiny 
exercises at any one time be adhered to and reviewed 
as part of a review of the Terms of Reference.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Finance, Assets & Performance Scrutiny Committee - 28/06/18

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
2

4. WORK PROGRAMME 

The Acting Chief Executive reported on the need to draw up a Work Programme for 
the Committee for 2018/19 and sought to assist by setting out guidance on issues to 
consider when identifying areas for scrutiny.  Matters/Service areas within the remit 
of the Committee were considered in detail together with the need to ensure that any 
scrutiny exercise took account of wider strategic aspects as appropriate and were 
timely in relation to the Cabinet’s Forward Plan.

RESOLVED: (i) That the Work Programme template be amended 
to show Cllr Proctor to be a member of this Scrutiny 
Committee, rather than Cllr Wilkes;

(ii) That the Work Programme template for  2018/19
comprise:

DATE OF MEETING SCRUTINY ISSUE/THEME DETAIL/COMMENT
Thursday 20 September 
2018

Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2018/19 - Update  
Guildhall/Community 
Resource

Joint meeting with Health, Well 
Being and Partnerships 
Scrutiny Committee

DATE TO BE ARRANGED – 
NOVEMBER 2018

Revenue And Capital 
Budgets 2019/20 – 
Progress/Update

Monday 17 December 2018 Treasury Management 
Strategy 2019/20

Scale of Fees and Charges 
2019/20

Thursday 21 March 2019 Castle House - Update To consider extent to which 
efficiencies/savings have been 
realised from the relocation to 
Castle House

DATE TO BE ARRANGED LAPs Joint meeting with Health, Well 
Being and Partnerships 
Scrutiny Committee

Discussion/exploration of 
Localism Model with 
information on approach by 
other Authorities including 
Preston and Trafford

Thursday 27 June 20189 Review of the Impact of the 
Committee’s work during 
Sept 2018-March 2019

5. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

There were no questions from members of the public on this occasion.

6. URGENT BUSINESS 

There were no items of urgent business.

Page 4



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Finance, Assets & Performance Scrutiny Committee - 28/06/18

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
3

7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

Thursday 20 September 2018 at 7.00pm.

COUNCILLOR MIKE STUBBS
Chair

Meeting concluded at 7.45 pm

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report Author: Kelvin Turner
Job Title: Executive Director (Resources and Support Services)
Email: kelvin.turner@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk
Telephone: 01782 742105

Introduction

To provide the Committee with an opportunity to scrutinise the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS). This is due to be considered by the Cabinet at their 
meeting on 17 October.

Background

The attached Cabinet report provides the relevant background for consideration of 
this matter. The MTFS document has been updated and has built on the positive 
comments received from members over the last few years in respect of being user 
friendly and easy to understand. The document has been updated in respect of the 
figures and assumptions. 

Questions to be Addressed

1.  Are members satisfied with the form and content of the strategy?  

2. Are members in agreement with the assumptions being made?  

3. Are members in agreement with the areas being looked at as part of the 
formulation of the budget strategy to eliminate the shortfalls? 

 4. Are members in agreement with the budget timetable for 2019/20? 

Outcomes

That the Scrutiny Committee recommends to the Cabinet approval of the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2023/24.

Report to the Finance Assets and

 Performance Scrutiny Committee

20 September 2018

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2023/24

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

 

That any comments on the strategy are reported back to the Cabinet.

Supporting Information 

The covering report to the Cabinet is attached.

The MTFS document is attached.

Relevant Portfolio Holder(s)

Councillor Sweeney – Portfolio holder for Finance and Efficiency

Local Ward Member (if applicable)

All

Page 8



 

 

1. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2019/20 TO 2023/24

Submitted by: Executive Director – Resources and Support Services

Portfolio: Finance and Efficiency

Ward(s) affected: All

Purpose of the Report

To provide the background on the financial strategy for the Council over the next five years in the 
light of the national and local financial situation and taking account of the Council’s priorities.

Recommendations

(a) To approve the Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2019/20 to 2023/24.
 

Reasons

The Medium Term Financial Strategy underpins the whole financial planning structure of the 
Authority. It is closely aligned to the Council Plan and focuses on targeting its financial resources 
in line with its stated aims and objectives.

1. Background

1.1 The Borough Council is committed to deliver high quality services. Integral to this ambition 
is the need to effectively target its financial resources in line with its stated aims and 
objectives.  

1.2 The document attached as an Appendix, the Medium Term Financial Strategy for the 
period from 2019/20 to 2023/24, demonstrates alignment with the Council Plan and will be 
the main vehicle in assessing the Council’s financial position, ensuring efficiency in 
service delivery and targeting resources to agreed priority areas.

2. Issues

2.1 Local government in general and district councils in particular continue to face the 
prospect of operating within a severely challenging financial environment. With further 
large decreases in general government funding confirmed and anticipated, the Council 
must review the services that it provides and its approach to value for money.

2.2 Central Government support is provided in the form of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and 
a Baseline Funding amount related to retained Business Rates. The amounts of funding 
were notified to the Council in December 2015 for the financial years 2016/17 to 2019/20. 
This shows considerable reductions in Revenue Support Grant received by the Council. 

2.3 The Local Government Finance Settlement for 2018/19 announced that by 2020/21 local 
government will retain 75% of business rate revenues; this will be a significant reform of 
local government finance and will come with additional responsibilities for local authorities 
(these have not yet been announced).

2.4 For the purposes of the Medium Term Financial Strategy it has been assumed that the 
Council will be in a cost neutral position once the new system is implemented. However, 
there can be no guarantee that this will be the case.

2.5 Housing is an important source of economic growth. For each new-build home, 
conversion and long-term empty home which has been brought back into use, the Council Page 9



 

 

currently receives New Homes Bonus Grant which is based on the extra Council Tax 
revenue generated by these homes. It is therefore both economically and financially 
important to support housing growth.

2.6 Following the outcome of the 2015 Spending Review Central Government consulted local 
authorities on a variety of options for increasing the focus of the New Homes Bonus on 
delivery of new homes and freeing up resources to be recycled within the local 
government settlement to support particular pressures, such as adult social care. 
Following the consultation: 

 The Bonus was adjusted to reflect estimates of deadweight (i.e. Bonus is now only 
paid above a higher baseline); 

 Proposals for reductions in the number of years for which the Bonus is paid from 6 
years to 4 years were introduced. 

2.7 The Government has retained the option of making further adjustments to the baseline in 
future years to reflect significant additional housing growth and to remain within spending 
limits set at Spending Review 2015.
 

2.8 The 2019 Spending Review will confirm overall local government resourcing from 
2020/21. The Government is working towards significant reform in the local government 
finance system in 2020/21, including an updated distribution methodology to set baseline 
funding levels, and resetting business rates baselines.

2.9 For the purposes of the Medium Term Financial Strategy it has been assumed that the 
Council will be in a cost neutral position once the new methodology is implemented. 
However, there can be no guarantee that this will be the case.

2.10 The purpose of the comprehensive five year Medium Term Financial Strategy is to predict 
likely budget totals if services are maintained at current levels, by projecting forward the 
different elements of the 2018/19 budget, such as employee pay or supplies and services, 
based on assumptions as to likely changes or specific pressures, such as pay increases 
or price increases or any agreed changes which will affect service levels. These 
assumptions are all set out in the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

2.11 It also illustrates how the Council Plan is driving the medium term financial plan over the 
next five years. Whilst standing on its own as a strategy, it is an integral part of the 
Council’s overall planning process comprising service delivery plans and the Council Plan.

2.12 The Medium Term Financial Strategy identifies significant budgetary shortfalls over the 
next five years that will need addressing with robust financial and budget strategies. The 
amounts for each year are set out below:

2019/20 £1.891m
2020/21 £1.064m
2021/22 £0.764m
2022/23 £0.644m
2023/24 £0.508m

The detailed Medium Term Financial Strategy shows how these amounts arise. 

2.13 The Council Leader and the Deputy Leader are members of the Efficiency Board. The 
Efficiency Board, a working group under the auspices of the cabinet, oversees all aspects 
of the budget process, including service review and challenge, longer term planning, 
development of budget options including proposals for savings and increasing income, 
agreeing consultation arrangements and consideration of feedback and seeking to deliver 
service models that drive improvement to front-line services whilst offering value for 
money. 

Page 10



 

 

2.14 Further budget options developed by the Efficiency Board will be available for 
consideration by December and the Medium Term Financial Strategy will be amended, 
where necessary, to take account of them. Cabinet will consider these proposals, in the 
form of a draft budget for 2019/20 at its meeting on 16 January 2019.

2.15 It is also envisaged that as in previous years, the first draft of the savings plans for 
2019/20 will be available for the meeting of the Finance, Assets and Performance 
Scrutiny Committee on 17 December 2018.

2.16 The Medium Term Financial Strategy was considered by the Finance Resources and 
Partnerships Scrutiny Committee at their meeting on 20 September. Feedback from their 
meeting will be provided at the Cabinet meeting.

3. Proposals

3.1 That Members approve the Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2019/20 - 2023/24.

4. Reasons for Preferred Solution

4.1 Without a Medium Term Financial Strategy it would be difficult to demonstrate the 
alignment of resources with the Council Plan. It is also the main vehicle for assessing the 
Council’s position, ensuring efficiency in service delivery and targeting resources to 
agreed priorities.

5. Outcomes Linked to Sustainable Community Strategy and Corporate Priorities

5.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy identifies the resources to deliver the corporate 
priorities of the Authority linked to expected outcomes.

6. Legal and Statutory Implications 

6.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy is not a statutory document but it is considered best 
practice.

7. Equality Impact Assessment

7.1 Differential equality impact issues will be identified against the key strategies, policies and 
functions of the Council and will be considered in producing future service improvements, 
which will then be reflected within the Council’s budgets.

8. Financial and Resource Implications

8.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy identifies future years’ shortfalls in financial 
resources which will need to be addressed as part of the Council’s budget strategies.

9. Major Risks 

9.1 Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 places a duty on the Chief Finance Officer 
to report on the robustness of the budget.  The main risks to the budget include:

 Spending in excess of the budget
 Income falling short of the budget
 Unforeseen elements, e.g. changes in interest rates

Such risks require regular and careful monitoring and it is essential that the council has 
sufficient reserves to call on if required, e.g. the council has a general fund balance of 
£1.20 million and a minimum balance of £0.100m in the Contingency Reserve. In previous 
years the Chief Finance Officer has believed that the assurance required under Section 

Page 11



 

 

25 can be given and, with careful budget planning, robust monitoring and adequate level 
of reserves, there should be no reasons to alter that view.

10. List of Appendices

Appendix - Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2023/24.

Page 12



  

  
1 

  

www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk 

Medium Term Financial Strategy  
2019/20 – 2023/24 

Page 13



  

  
2 

 

 

 

 

Contents 

 

Introduction, Financial and Corporate Planning 3 

The Council’s Overall Financial Position 7 

Timetable and Procedure 15 

Risk 15 

The Council’s Financial Strategy 16 

Council Taxbase and Collection Fund 17 

MTFS Summary 19 

  

 

 

  

Page 14



  

  
3 

Introduction, Financial and Corporate Planning 

This document provides details of the Council’s medium term financial plans and projected financial 

position up to and including the financial year 2023/24. 

The document includes the Council’s strategy to address the challenge of financial sustainability 

that is to be provided in the medium term including the ceasing of Revenue Support Grant, 

reductions in New Homes Bonus funding and the move to 75% business rates retention within local 

government by 2020/21.  

It sets out how the Council spends the money it receives from the residents and businesses of 

Newcastle-under-Lyme and Central Government, to provide services and to meet the priorities 

identified in the Council Plan.  

The formulation of this medium term strategy is part of the wider financial strategy and framework at 

the Council. Financial planning is an on‐going process and this strategy is reviewed and updated 

annually.  

It follows that the Medium Term Financial Strategy has clear links to the Council Plan and where the 

authority is involved in key partnerships, it also references ongoing and planned transformation 

projects and programmes that will enable the Council to reduce its costs or generate additional 

income locally. 

A Longer-Term View 

The Council plans its finances over a 5-year rolling programme. This longer-term view is designed 

to highlight at an early stage where financial challenges may arise and the level of resources likely 

to be available beyond the current financial year. 

This helps to identify future issues in order that a timely and planned approach can be taken to 

address a shortfall in resources, a reprioritisation of spending or indeed where additional resources 

are available, where they should be invested.  

Efficiency Board 

An Efficiency Board, a working group under the auspices of the cabinet, has been established to 

ensure that the budget setting process consults all interested parties in a transparent manner. The 

Council Leader and the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance and Efficiency are members of the 

group, together with the Acting Chief Executive and Executive Director of Resources and Support 

Services. Other portfolio holders and officers attend as and when necessary. 

The remit of the group is to oversee all aspects of the budget process, including service review and 

challenge, longer term planning, development of budget options, agreeing consultation 

arrangements and consideration of feedback and seeking to deliver service models that drive 

improvements to front line services whilst offering value for money. 

Page 15



  

  
4 

The Council Plan (Subject to Cabinet approval at their meeting on 19 September) 

The Council Plan for 2018-2022 details the Council’s plans for the next four years. Foremost in the 

plan, is the delivery of key services to everyone by working with partners and local organisations to 

support and grow our communities, despite reducing finances for the Council. This means there is a 

need for changes to the way we work, do business and deliver our services. There is thus a clear 

and direct link to the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) from the Council Plan. 

The plan informs how we will be working together to make the borough an even better place for 

everyone who lives, works, studies or visits here. The aims of the Council can only be achieved by 

taking advantage of every opportunity available and developing new ones through innovation and a 

more collaborative approach. 

The Council wishes to strive for excellence in everything we do, and the plan sets out how we will 

work to achieve our aims and vision, to ensure the borough is in a strong position for the future of all 

who live, work, study and visit. 

The Council’s Role 

The vision for Newcastle-under-Lyme is for it to be a place that provides good local services and is 

a prosperous and safe Borough, welcoming to all. To deliver this vision the Council’s outcomes are: 

 More available housing. 

 Improved job opportunities. 

 Strong and positive relations 

between our communities. 

 Clean streets, parks and open 

spaces. 

 A more vibrant town centre. 

 Reduction in crime. 

 Increased investment in the 

borough with strong 

economical growth. 

The Council’s role is seen as providing 

strong, strategic leadership, and being able to work towards a new future for the borough and 

equipping others whether a resident or visitor, to share this vision. 

Priorities 

The vision sets 2 challenges – about the place that the Council wants Newcastle-under-Lyme to be 

and about the sort of organisation that the Council wants to be in order to make the vision a reality.  

Page 16



  

  
5 

Central 
Services,   

£2.4m 

Cultural 
Services,   

£3.5m 

Corporate 
Expenditure,  

£0.1m 

Housing 
Services, 

£1.3m 

Planning 
Services,   

£1.3m 

Environmental 
Services,   

£6.5m 

In order to provide the right framework and direction for the organisation to deliver this vision, and in 

order to deliver the planned outcomes, the Council has developed 4 new priorities which clearly 

represent its main areas of focus and reflect clearly what the Council wants to achieve: 

 Local services that work for local people. 

This is the Council’s key priority which influences everything it does. The aim is to be a Council 

that listens to its local residents and communities by being responsive to their needs, and to 

work with them to deliver first class services.  

 Growing our people and place. 

The Council aims to build a strong and sustainable economy to ensure opportunities and 

support are available to everyone to improve their lives. 

 A healthy, active and safe borough. 

The Council will ensure everyone enjoys a safe environment, and access to a wide range of 

facilities and activities to support residents and visitors to improve their health and quality of 

life. 

 A Town centre for all. 

 Creating two vibrant Town Centres in Newcastle and Kidsgrove where everyone can live, 

 work, study and spend their leisure time. 

These priorities and outcomes are regularly reviewed and monitored. Progress against targets is 

reported to Cabinet. 

The full Council Plan can be accessed at www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk. 

Links with the Medium Term 

Financial Strategy 

The financial planning framework is 

integrated with the corporate planning 

process. The Council Plan aims to 

identify the specific services and 

issues on which the Council should 

prioritise its resources and the 

Council’s budgetary plans reflect this. 

The net operating expenditure budget 

for 2018/19 has been allocated across 

services provided as shown in the 

chart alongside. 

Page 17

http://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/


  

  
6 

Links to other strategies and plans 

The MTFS has links to a number of other Council and wider community strategies and plans. Where 

these have financial consequences for the Council, they are reflected in the MTFS. Those with a 

significant input are: 

Capital Strategy and Capital Programme 

The Capital Strategy sets out how the Council proposes to deploy its capital resources in order to 

assist it to achieve its corporate and service objectives. It also takes into account the resources 

which are likely to be available to the Council to fund capital investment and the effect of that 

investment on the Council’s revenue budget. The Council’s detailed capital investment plan is 

contained in its approved Capital Programme. The current programme was approved by Full 

Council on 24 February 2018. This programme provides for £2.549 million of investment during 

2018/19 in projects across all of the Council’s priority areas. 

The Capital Strategy has been prepared against a background of unprecedented reductions in 

funding provided to local authorities by central government and its agencies, arising from the need 

to restrain public expenditure owing to the ongoing economic situation and to rebalance public 

finances. At the same time, the Council’s own resources available to finance capital projects are 

running out and will need replenishing before any substantial further capital investments can be 

made. Whilst the Council has benefited from an ability to recycle income derived from the disposal 

of land and property over many years, a more focused programme of asset disposals has been 

agreed via the Asset Management Strategy to counteract the effects of reduced external finance. 

The Council is presently debt free, having no long term loans outstanding. However, the Council 

has committed to borrowing for Castle House. 

Asset Management Strategy 

The Asset Management Strategy encapsulates the Council’s response to national policies and 

guidelines; it sets out the processes for the strategic management of the Council’s property assets 

in order to ensure the best use of assets to meet corporate objectives in an efficient and effective 

manner. These processes resonate with the Capital Strategy and in turn may result in projects 

being included in the Capital Programme. 

Through a planned and ongoing review of the asset register, against current and anticipated usage, 

disposal of assets provide investment into the Council’s Capital Programme. In parallel the Council 

will seek partner contributions (for example through external grants, partner organisation use of 

Council assets to contribute to revenue streams and joint venture opportunities). 

Treasury Management Strategy 

The Treasury Management Strategy is approved annually and sets out the Council’s strategy for 

investment of its funds. The investment strategy, together with the prevailing market conditions in 

relation to interest rates and counterparty security will be the major factor in determining the return 

which is obtained on investments. Interest on investments is a source of income in the revenue 

budget. 

Page 18



  

  
7 

Charging Policy 

The Charging Policy sets out the Council’s intentions regarding the charges it makes and the criteria 

which it will use to determine the level of charge for individual services. The annually approved 

scale of fees and charges is compiled in line with the principles set out in the policy. Income from 

fees and charges comprises a significant proportion of the income included in the revenue budget. 

Departmental Service Delivery Plans 

Service Plans are an integral part of the Council’s planning process and demonstrate the actions 

and targets of each directorate in order to achieve corporate objectives and priorities.  

Overall Financial Position 

The Council’s overall financial position and its response to financial challenges has been strong 

over recent years, during the previous five year period (i.e. 2014/15 to 2018/19) efficiency savings in 

excess of £10.4 million have been generated. 

This has arisen from prudent financial management, together with a programme of efficiency 

savings from transformation, procurement, service delivery and the generation of additional income. 

These savings have helped to sustain the Council’s financial position against a background of 

reducing resources. 

The financial sustainability of the Council was reviewed by the Council’s external auditors, Grant 

Thornton during July 2018. Grant Thornton concluded that: 

“The Council has appropriate arrangements for delivering economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness. The Council has continued to deliver services broadly in line with its budget 

plan, in line with its past record of sound financial control. The Council has set a balanced 

budget and has identified funding gaps in its medium term financial strategy. The Council 

has already identified actions to address around 50% of these funding gaps and has an 

efficiency and savings programme in place to identify further savings” 

The Council has recently moved premises to a new public sector hub, Castle House, based within 

the town centre in order to generate efficiency savings to the public sector of £39 million over the 

next 60 years (a quarter of a million pounds per annum solely to the Council) and to continue 

delivering high quality services including joint working, agile working and collaboration with public 

sector organisations including Staffordshire County Council, the Police and the NHS. 

Castle House has been jointly developed by the Council and Staffordshire County Council and is 

considered to be a prime example of how public sector bodies, along with other partners, can work 

together to meet the needs of communities and provide locally relevant solutions. 

Page 19



  

  
8 

The recent move to Castle House will save taxpayers significant sums through public sector 

organisations working together to deliver a wide range of public services under one roof. 

Additionally it will enable the redevelopment of the site of the former Civic Offices and the 

surrounding area (known as Ryecroft). It is hoped that this development will bring significant 

investment into the town centre, along with construction jobs, to create a long term benefit to the 

overall town centre economy. 

Officers and Members of the Council are continually open to new ideas and new ways of doing 

things and as such new electoral arrangements have been introduced. The Council previously had 

60 elected Councillors representing 24 wards and elections took place by thirds, i.e. elections held 

three in every four years with each Councillor being elected for a four year term of office. In the 

fourth year when County Council elections are held, there was no Borough election. 

The number of elected Members has reduced from 60 to 44. This has enabled cost savings to be 

delivered in terms of the allowance that is paid to each Member. Moving from the previous 

arrangement of elections taking place by thirds to an all-out cycle of elections, which means that all 

seats of the Council are elected at the same time, once every four years, was implemented in 

liaison with the Local Government Boundary Commission for England. This will generate savings to 

the Council of £195,000 over a five year period (£39,000 per annum). 

The move to all out elections also brings further non-financial benefits including the enabling of a 

strong strategic mandate in terms of policy and decision making for the Council for a four year, 

medium term, period. It also enables the Council’s electoral cycle to be linked to that of other local 

public sector bodies and enabling partnership working to be engaged with. 

The National Context 

Revenue Support Grant 

Similar to other areas of the Public Sector, local authorities have had to lower costs as their central 

government funding has reduced. This is a result of the Government’s Policy to address the national 

budget deficit and is expected to be on‐going over the life of this Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

Due to certain services receiving protection (Education and Social Services) the largest impact of 

the reductions falls on district councils. Central government support for local authorities’ revenue 

budgets is provided in the form of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) plus a Baseline Funding amount 

relating to Business Rates.  

Page 20



  

  
9 

The amounts to be paid to local authorities as a whole and to individual authorities are announced 

via the annual local government finance settlement, provisional figures being announced usually in 

December and final ones in January. In the 2016/17 provisional local government finance 

settlement, the government stated that it would offer any Council that wishes to take it up, a four-

year funding settlement up to and including 2019/20 covering Revenue Support Grant, giving 

increased certainty for this funding (Revenue Support Grant will cease for the Council in 2020/21). 

The four year settlement offer, which was accepted by the Council, was offered in return for the 

publishing of an efficiency plan. 

Business Rates Retention 

The Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced 50% business rate retention for local 

authorities and for the localisation of council tax benefit, i.e. for local authorities to assume 

responsibility for devising schemes for making payments to claimants, instead of acting as agents 

for the Department of Work and Pensions.  

The revised arrangements took effect from 1st April 2013. The Council still bill and collect business 

rates, but instead of contributing all business rates into the central pool and receiving formula grant 

plus a baseline funding amount, a proportion of the business rates is retained by the Council. 

A baseline level of funding was set so that at the start of the system, the amount received is 

equivalent to what it would have been under the previous system, less the reductions arising from 

the Local Government Resources Review. From then on the Council’s funding may grow if the 

business rates base in Newcastle-under-Lyme grows, but could also fall if the business rates base 

declines. 

The Finance Settlement for 2018/19 announced that by 2020/21 local government will retain 75% of 

business rate revenues; this will be a significant reform of local government finance and will come 

with additional responsibilities for local authorities (these have not yet been announced). 

It may further empower local authorities to deliver services in a way that is right for their area, whilst 

also significantly increasing the risks associated with the levels of business rates collected (i.e. the 

less collected due to non-payment or appeals against revaluations by businesses, the less business 

rates the Council will retain).  

For the purposes of the Medium Term Financial Strategy is has been assumed that the Council will 

be in a cost neutral position once the new system is implemented, again, this cannot be guaranteed. 

The most recent business rates revaluation took effect from 1 April 2017. This created change in 

business rates revenues outside the control of local authorities. When the Government introduced 

the 50% business rate retention scheme it signalled that it would adjust each authority’s tariff or top-

up following a revaluation to ensure, as far as is practicable, that their retained income is the same 

after revaluation as immediately before.  

In the 2016/17 Local Government Finance Settlement technical consultation the Government 

detailed the method by which the impact of the 2017 business rates revaluation would be 

neutralised in the rates retention scheme. The Government committed to making the revaluation 

Page 21



  

  
10 

adjustment in three stages. The final stage of adjustment will occur in 2019/20 where the one-off 

reconciliation adjustment for 2018/19 adjustments to tariffs and top-ups will be cancelled. 

New Homes Bonus 

The New Homes Bonus (the ‘Bonus’) was introduced in 2011 to provide an incentive for local 

authorities to encourage housing growth in their areas. Over £7 billion has been allocated to local 

authorities through the scheme to reward additional housing supply. 

Similar to RSG and retained business rates, the NHB is a flexible, un-ringfenced fund and is part of 

the support package that central government pay to local councils. 

Following the outcome of the 2015 Spending Review Central Government consulted local 

authorities on a variety of options for increasing the focus of the New Homes Bonus on delivery of 

new homes and freeing up resources to be recycled within the local government settlement to 

support particular pressures, such as adult social care. Following the consultation: 

 The Bonus was adjusted to reflect estimates of deadweight (i.e. Bonus is now only paid above 

a higher baseline); 

 Proposals for reductions in the number of years for which the Bonus is paid from 6 years to 4 

years were introduced. 

The Government has retained the option of making adjustments to the baseline in future years to 

reflect significant additional housing growth and to remain within spending limits set at Spending 

Review 2015.  

Due to the continued upward trend for house building, the Government expects to increase the 

baseline in 2019/20. New Homes Bonus calculations are based on additional housing stock 

reported through the council tax base and decisions on the baseline for 2019/20 will be made 

following a review of the data when it is published in November. Any changes intended for the 

baseline in 2019/20 will be detailed at the time of the provisional settlement. Any funding intended 

for New Homes Bonus payments that is not used for this purpose will be returned to local 

government. 

2019/20 represents the final year of funding agreed through the Spending Review 2015. In light of 

this, it is the Government’s intention to explore how to incentivise housing growth most effectively, 

for example by using the Housing Delivery Test results to reward delivery or incentivising plans that 

meet or exceed local housing need. Government will consult widely on any changes prior to 

implementation. 

Council Tax Referendum 

The 2018/19 Settlement gave shire district councils the opportunity to increase Council Tax by up to 

3%, or up to and including £5, whichever is the higher. The Government is currently consulting local 

authorities concerning the 2019/20 finance settlement and propose that the same principles should 

apply for 2019/20.  

Page 22



  

  
11 

2019 Spending Review 

The 2019 Spending Review will confirm overall local government resourcing from 2020/21. The 

Government is working towards significant reform in the local government finance system in 

2020/21, including an updated, more robust and transparent distribution methodology to set 

baseline funding levels, and resetting business rates baselines. Prior to these reforms in 2020/21, 

the Government is committed to testing aspects of the new system, and will be implementing a 

further round of Business Rates Retention pilots in 2019/20. 

Funding baselines for local authorities, as determined by the local government finance settlement, 

are based on an assessment of local authorities’ relative needs and resources. The methodology 

behind this assessment was introduced over ten years ago, and has not been updated since the 

introduction of the 50% business rates retention system in 2013/14.  

Since that time, demographic pressures have affected local areas in different ways, as has the cost 

of providing particular services. In recognition of these pressures, the Government last year 

announced a review to address concerns about the fairness of current funding distributions. The 

outcome of this review will enable the Government to reconsider how the relative needs and 

resources of local authorities should be assessed in a world in which they will continue to have 

greater control over the money that they raise.  

There have been widespread calls for a thorough, evidence-based review, based on effective 

collaboration with local government. Many have argued that the current four year settlement should 

run its course to 2019/20. The Government believes that working towards an implementation date 

for the review of 2020/21, while keeping this under review as work progresses, offers the best 

opportunity to achieve these objectives, alongside wider policy developments in local government 

finance and adult social care.  

Local government is the frontline of our democracy and accounts for almost a quarter of public 

spending. It delivers a wide range of important services used by residents on a daily basis, and 

provides essential support for the most vulnerable people in our society. The local government 

funding system must therefore offer appropriate levels of stability and assurance to councils to 

support financial planning, along with greater control over the money they raise and strong 

incentives to deliver services efficiently and in a way that promotes local economic growth 

No two local authorities are the same. Changes in demography and the cost of service delivery will 

affect areas differently across the range of services, while the challenge of growing local economies 

varies. The review will address concerns about the fairness of the current distribution of funding to 

local authorities, ensuring that funding allocations reflect the relative ‘need to spend’, and taking into 

account the capacity of authorities to fund local services through local income.  

The current local government funding system is often criticised for its complexity. The Government 

is also working towards a system that is, as far as is practicable, more simple and transparent whilst 

providing as much discretion as possible to local councils over the use of resources so as to 

empower the transformation of local services and ensure that councillors are accountable for 

deciding how funding is used locally.  

Page 23



  

  
12 

The fair funding review will set new baseline funding allocations for local authorities by delivering an 

up-to-date assessment of their relative needs and resources.  

Brexit 

The vote to leave the European Union (EU) has significant structural and financial implications for 

local government and the wider public sector, at the current time these cannot be quantified. For the 

UK to leave the EU it had to invoke Article 50 of the Lisbon Treaty which gives the two sides two 

years to agree the terms of the split. This process was triggered on 29 March 2017, meaning the UK 

is scheduled to leave on Friday, 29 March 2019. It can be extended if all 28 EU members agree, but 

at the moment all sides are focusing on that date as being the key one, and Theresa May has now 

put it into British law. 

A transition period of time, up to 31 December 2020, is allowed to get everything in place and allow 

businesses and others to prepare for the moment when the new post-Brexit rules between the UK 

and the EU begin. 

Compilation of the MTFS 

Principles 

The MTFS considers changes to the 2018/19 base budget by breaking this budget down into its 

subjective cost and income components; pay, pensions, utilities, fuel, supplies and services, 

investment income, income from fees and charges, etc.  An assessment is then made, in respect of 

each of these components, of the factors which might affect their cost or the amount of income 

receivable and whether there is likely to be a change in this cost or income, and if so how much it 

will amount to, in each year over the five year period.  Also taken into consideration are any 

additional pressures which may apply to services over the five year period, plus any savings which 

have been identified and agreed or approved investments in services over the five years.  The 

MTFS therefore shows the changes from the initial 2018/19 base budget through to 2023/24, 

demonstrating the variances between each of the years. 

Base budget components assessed for cost variances 

These are set out in detail in the MTFS summary (page 19), which shows by how much, in 

monetary terms, the estimated budget for each of the five years varies in comparison to the 

previous year on account of these factors alone. Also shown are the assumptions about price 

changes that have been made in respect of each component. In summary, the components 

examined, the factors which were taken into account to assess the changes, and the key 

assumptions that have been made are: 

 Central Government funding via the Revenue Support Grant will reduce as per the four-year 

funding settlement, with the assumption that all remaining Revenue Support Grant will be cut 

in 2020/21 as part of the 2019 spending review; 

 A position of financial neutrality has been assumed for the introduction of the revised spending 

baselines in 2020/21, after the removal of all remaining Revenue Support Grant; 

Page 24



  

  
13 

 New Homes Bonus funding will continue at 4 years rolling funding, no assumptions for any 

change to the deadweight have been allowed for; 

 Business Rates baseline funding retained by the Council is to increase in line with inflation 

forecasts provided by Central Government for 2019/20 as per the four-year funding settlement 

and by inflation in future years; 

 The impact of 75% Business Rates Retention will be cost neutral;  

 Full provision for known pay increases from incremental progression; 

 A 2 per cent pay award in 2019/20 and 1 per cent for each year thereafter (an increase of 1 

per cent from this would result in a further £119,000);  

 National Insurance increases, linked to increased pay; 

 Superannuation increases, both to take account of increased pay and changes in contributions 

to the pension fund; 

 Inflationary uplifts in Business Rates, fuel and utilities expenditure (with utilities expenditure 

only increasing at the cessation of the Council’s current fixed rate contract); 

 Increase in income from customer receipts in line with inflation forecasts; 

Assessment of what the MTFS means 

The implications of the MTFS forecast will be taken into consideration in the preparation of detailed 

budgets for 2019/20 and give guideline figures for the budgets for the following four financial years.  

Details of the timetable which is being followed are shown later. 

The summarised MTFS illustrates that the Council would have the following shortfalls over the next 

five years which need to be addressed.  

 £1.891m in 2019/20 

 £1.064m in 2020/21 

 £764,000 in 2021/22 

 £644,000 in 2022/23 

 £508,000 in 2023/24 

As a percentage of the net budget, the potential shortfall in 2019/20 represents 14 per cent of the 

current year’s net revenue budget. In recent years, the shortfalls have been met by a combination of 

efficiency measures, better procurement, increased income generation, council tax increases etc. 

The continued Central Government funding reductions together with other pressures outlined will 

mean that together with a continuation of the above strategies, more radical solutions may need to 

Page 25



  

  
14 

be formulated e.g. shared resources with other organisations, alternative service delivery models 

and reduction in services. 

Budget Strategy and Savings 

The Council continues to look at how its decreasing resource base over the medium term can be 

best used to meet the needs of the population of the Borough and to produce a balanced budget. 

A number of work streams, all of which provide a perspective on the future role and funding of the 

Council have been undertaken, are currently being undertaken or are planned to be undertaken in 

the medium term, these include: 

 A number of options are being looked at which could assist the council to sustain services with 

significantly reduced resources. Areas being looked at include demand management, self-

service delivery, procurement and cost sharing with partners and other organisations.  

 Better use of assets including sharing resources and assets with partners and local 

organisations, a review of assets usage or potential usage and the costs associated with the 

continued usage or occupation of these assets. 

 Work continues to be undertaken to ease the burden of carrying out administration tasks 

across the Council. 

 Staffing efficiencies including maximising the potential for the sharing of resources with other 

public sector organisations, a constant review of vacant posts within the Council and the need 

to recruit to these posts, a number of service restructures following the departures or reduced 

hours of staff and a number of flexible retirements. 

 Open and Transparent procurement savings resulting from the negotiation of contracts, from 

determining the actual need for goods, works or services and through ensuring that the 

Council commissions and procures quality services and supplies, as cost effectively as 

possible including joint procuring from working co-operatively with our partners.  

 Use of alternative sources of funding and reserves, e.g. New Homes Bonus contributions, 

Business Rates Retention Scheme. 

 Being open to new ideas and new areas of income generation including areas where work is 

being undertaken to particularly ensure that the services are being operated on a commercial 

basis and to ensure that the subsidy to these services from the Council is minimised. 

 Ensuring that the public purse is at the centre of everything that we do by ensuring good 

housekeeping efficiencies including a comprehensive review of services’ expenditure budgets 

that are underutilised and reductions in fees that are required to be paid to external bodies. 

Page 26



  

  
15 

Timetable and Procedure 

As mentioned earlier, an Efficiency Board has been established to oversee all aspects of the budget 

process, including service review and challenge, longer term planning, development of budget 

options, agreeing consultation arrangements and consideration of feedback and seeking to deliver 

service models that drive improvement to front line services whilst offering value for money. 

The budget timetable as regards member involvement and the completion of key stages in the 

process is set out in the table below: 

Event Body Affected Date 

Scrutiny of MTFS Finance, Assets and Performance 
Scrutiny Committee (FAPSC) 

20 September 

Consideration of MTFS and feedback from 
FAPSC 

Cabinet 17 October 

Initial budget strategy and savings options Finance, Assets and Performance 
Scrutiny Committee 

17 December 

Draft Budget proposals including options 
approved  

Cabinet 16 January 

Budget proposals recommended for 
approval by Full Council  

Cabinet 6 February 

Full Council to approve Budget Full Council 20 February 

Risk 

Risk Statement  

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 places a duty on the Chief Finance Officer to report 

on the robustness of the budget.  The main risks to the budget include: spending in excess of the 

budget, income falling short of the budget and unforeseen elements, e.g. changes in interest rates 

and budget strategies and savings that do not have robust plans. 

Such risks require regular and careful monitoring and it is essential that the Council has sufficient 

reserves to call on, if required, e.g. the Council has a general fund balance of £1.2 million. In 

previous years the Chief Finance Officer has believed that the assurances required under Section 

25 can be given and, with careful budget planning, robust monitoring and an adequate level of 

reserves, there should be no reasons to alter that view. 

Page 27



  

  
16 

Risk Analysis 

These risks are managed through a series of mitigation measures included in the financial planning 

and are monitored on an on‐going basis via the Council’s risk management process, the Efficiency 

Board and regular reports to Members. 

The Council’s Financial Strategy 

The Council is committed to delivering high quality services and considerable progress has been 

made over the last year with significant improvements and positive feedback from external auditors. 

Integral to this ambition is the need to effectively target its financial resources in line with the 

priorities of the Council.  

It is the Council’s ambition to continue to substantially improve its service delivery over the next five 

years. Sound and effective financial planning has a vital role to play in ensuring that ambition is 

realised, through providing sufficient resources to enable the services that matter most to our 

citizens to be delivered and to respond to the increased demands placed upon the Council.  

The current economic climate and the reductions in central government support to local  authorities,  

particularly for second tier district councils such as Newcastle-under-Lyme, reinforces the need for 

sound financial planning, not just for the year immediately ahead (2019/20) but over the medium 

term as well.  

To meet this need, the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) has been developed for a period 

spanning five years, from 2019/20 to 2023/24.  The MTFS demonstrates alignment with the Council 

Plan and will be the main vehicle in assessing the Council’s financial position, ensuring efficiency in 

service delivery and targeting resources via a transparent process to agreed priority areas. It 

illustrates how the Council Plan is driving the medium term financial plans for services over the next 

five years.   

It is a key document informing the 2019/20 budget process. The assumptions about future costs 

and income together with those relating to investment and efficiency savings will be incorporated in 

the 2019/20 budget and will account for the majority of the change in net spending between the 

2019/20 budget and that for 2018/19. The indications given in the MTFS concerning the gap 

between future years’ expenditure levels and available resources will enable the Council to draw up 

an informed strategy that reflects the priorities of the Council, to bridge those shortfalls.  

The MTFS will be used during 2019/20 as the basis for reviewing the Council’s financial position.  

The assumptions contained in it will be regularly reviewed and amendments made to the plan, 

where necessary.  If any consequences in terms of significant adverse budget variations become 

apparent, this information will be used to formulate an action plan to deal with the budget shortfall. 

Conversely, if a significant positive variance is indicated, and likely to persist, this knowledge will 

enable the Council to decide whether to use this to increase reserves or to reallocate some or all of 

it to additional investments in line with corporate priorities. 

Page 28



  

  
17 

Whilst the MTFS and Efficiency Plan stands on its own as a strategy, it is an integral part of the 

Council’s overall planning process. 

The Financial Framework 

Within the overall strategy, a framework is effectively cascaded down and detailed in other plans 

and policy documents, as set out in the following table: 

Medium Term Financial Strategy 

and Efficiency Plan 

This document sets out the medium term financial 

plans of the Council. 

Treasury Management Strategy Setting out how cash and investments are 

managed. This is designed to ensure the security 

and liquidity of any council money invested. 

Financial Regulations Setting out the procedures to ensure that the use 

of finance is legal, properly authorised, reported 

and provides value for money. These are the 

detailed rules which are used by Council officers 

on a daily basis to govern their operations. 

Internal Audit Plan Setting out when fundamental financial and other 

systems will be reviewed over time to test the 

effectiveness of internal control. This Plan is 

approved and monitored by the Council’s Audit 

and Standards Committee. 

Capital Strategy and Capital Programme Setting out how major investment is planned and 

managed and helps to deliver the Council’s 

priorities. 

Asset Management Strategy 

 

Setting out the management of land and property 

and identifying assets for disposal. 

Council Tax Base and Collection Fund 

The Council’s tax base represents the average “value” of the properties in its area as set against a 

standard band D property. For example a band D property is expressed as one whilst a lower value 

band A property is calculated as 6/9 of the band D. On the other hand, the highest value property is 

band H which is calculated at 18/9 of band D. 

The calculation of the tax base has an important effect on the level of council tax in that an increase 

in the tax base (say, from new building) will mean that the amount to be raised is spread over more 

properties whilst a reduction (say, from demolitions) will mean that it has to be spread over fewer 

properties. For 2018/19 the tax base was calculated at 36,812 properties. 

Page 29



  

  
18 

The collection fund is the account through which all council tax is collected.  The Council makes an 

assumption as to the percentage of council tax which will be ultimately collected, if that target is not 

met then there will be a deficit which will have to be accounted for in the next financial year whilst if 

there is a surplus then this can be used to offset whatever council tax is levied in the next financial 

year.   

Only a certain proportion of the overall council tax bill is attributable 

to the Council’s services. The Council also collects the proportions 

due to other public bodies that provide services within Staffordshire. 

These are; 

 Staffordshire County Council (Education, Social Services, 

Highways, Libraries, Waste Disposal and Trading Services) 

 Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Staffordshire 

(Policing and Crime Prevention) 

 Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service (Fire Fighting and 

Accident Prevention) 

 Local Parishes (Community Facilities) 

The split of the overall bill for 2018/19 at Band D level is; 

Overall Band D Council Tax  £:p 

Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council 190.45 

Staffordshire County Council 1,210.52 

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Staffordshire 192.56 

Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service 73.53 

Sub-total                                                         1,667.06 

Parish Council (Average) 29.24 

Total 1,696.30 

Local Parish Councils set various rates that are additional to the Band D levels above for residents 

in those areas. There are 10 parish areas in the District and the Parish levy for 2018/19 at Band D 

ranges from £15.28 to £55.73. 

Page 30



  

  
19 

MTFS Summary 

 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Notes 

Changes to Base Budget £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  

Employee Incremental Increases 80 60 37 5 0 As per Salaries Estimates 

Pay Awards 237 121 122 123 125 2% increase in 2019/20 and 1% per year thereafter 

Superannuation Increases 335 402 308 303 303 Includes lump sum increases 

National Insurance 44 25 22 18 17 Per incremental increases & pay awards  

Premises (e.g. Business Rates) 35 28 24 25 25 Increases as per settlement inflation forecasts 

Transport (e.g. Fuel) 16 17 17 18 19 
Increases as per Department for Business, Energy and 
Industrial Strategy forecasts 

Other Costs (e.g. Inflation, Uplifts) 38 5 5 5 0 
General inflation on energy and housing advice contract 
and increases in insurance premium tax 

One Off Budget Items Removed  66 0 0 0 0 Expenditure taken from/income added to budget 

New Homes Bonus 519 347 237 158 103   

Government Grants 526 63 0 0 0 Per settlement indications (RSG) 

Business Rates Baseline Funding (80) (77) (79) (80) (82) Per settlement indications (Business Rates Baseline) 

Waste 69 69 69 69 0 Reductions in recycling credits awarded 

New Pressures 100 100 100 100 100 To meet new pressures 

Fees & Charges & other Income (94) (96) (98) (100) (102) Increases as per settlement inflation forecasts 

TOTAL MTFS SHORTFALLS 1,891 1,064 764 644 508  

  

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report to Finance, Assets & Performance Scrutiny Committee – September 2018 

Modern Slavery update 

Sarah Moore – Partnerships Manager

A recent resolution carried by full Council was as follows;

Council resolves:

1. To subscribe to Anti-Slavery International's Anti-Slavery Charter 
(https://www.antislavery.org/anti-slavery-charter/).

2. To reaffirm the Council's Modern Slavery Statement, adopted under the Modern Slavery Act 
2015, s.54, in May and approved by the Portfolio Holder for Community Safety and 
Wellbeing.

3. To require the Portfolio Holder to place before the relevant scrutiny committee a report on 
the implementation and operation of the Modern Slavery Statement, so that the Council's 
policy and processes can be properly reviewed and recommendations received. This must 
be done prior to May 2019.

Introduction

Modern slavery is an international crime which affects an estimated 29.8 million victims globally.  It 
is a growing issue which transcends age, gender and ethnicity.  Such victims include persons forced 
to work illegally against their will in sectors such as agriculture, hospitality, construction, retail and 
manufacturing.

Section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 (the Act) requires organisations above a certain size, 
which supply goods or services, to prepare and publish an annual Modern Slavery and Human 
Trafficking Statement.

The Council’s ‘Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement 2018/19’ sets out the Council’s 
actions to recognise all potential modern slavery risks related to its business and corporate 
activities, and to put in place steps that are aimed at ensuring that there is no slavery or human 
trafficking in its own business or its supply chains.  

The statement was approved by the Council’s Executive Management Team and the Portfolio 
Holder of Community Safety and Wellbeing in May 2018.  It will continue to be reviewed and 
updated annually.

Organisational structure 

The Council’s core business is the supply of Public Services to residents of its Borough. The 
Borough of Newcastle-under-Lyme covers some 81 square miles and has a population of 
approximately 123,000 (based on the 2011 census). The Borough Council employs around 550 staff 
with a mix of full time and part time, administrative, technical and support officers. 

The Borough Council has a budget of £6.597m for goods and services and estimated £2.549m 
available budget for capital expenditure (2018/19). The Borough Council of Newcastle-under-Lyme 
operates a devolved procurement structure where each directorate / service area are responsible 
for their own purchasing /procurement and contracting function, this is supported corporately by 
strategic procurement officers.

The Corporate Procurement support team, led by the Business Improvement Manager, is 
responsible for strategically supporting officers in the contracting of high value, high-risk 
commodities as well as offering support in the Council’s general supply chain. This team work 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



 

 

closely with the Council’s Partnerships Team, who have responsibility for community safety, 
safeguarding and vulnerability.

Council Policies on slavery and human trafficking

The Council is committed to ensure that all parts of our business and supply chain are slavery free. 

As part of the Council’s procurement, contracting and contract review processes with its suppliers 
and their supply chains, it will endeavour to ensure that all suppliers on strategic, high value, high 
risk agreements are monitored and supported by use of an ongoing monitoring process. We will 
continue to develop tools to address and develop action plans that address modern slavery and 
other key sustainable /social value issues.  

The Council will also ensure that any tendering activity includes statements to ensure compliance to 
this Act. In particular, the Council aims to reduce the risk of modern slavery in its supply chain by 
undertaking the following actions:
• Where appropriate require key contractors to have safeguarding policies, procedures and 
training in place, in addition to providing confirmation of compliance with the Modern Slavery Act.
• Consider modern slavery factors when making procurement decisions.
• Include modern slavery criteria in specification and tender documents where appropriate.
• Consider modern slavery factors when evaluating specifications and tenders.

The Council reviews its policies and procedures on an ongoing basis to ensure they remain 
compliant and fit for purpose.  The following policies and procedures are also considered to be key 
in meeting the requirements of the Modern Slavery Act:

• Safeguarding - the Council embraces its responsibility to develop, implement and monitor 
policies and procedures to safeguard the welfare of children and adults with needs for care and 
support.  The Council has a comprehensive Safeguarding Policy which all staff and councillors are 
expected to read and work within.  The Council works within multi-agency partnerships to protect 
and safeguard people.

• Recruitment - the Council’s recruitment processes are transparent and reviewed regularly.  
They include robust procedures for vetting new employees, which ensures they are able to confirm 
their identities and qualifications, and they are paid directly to an appropriate, personal bank 
account.  To comply with the Asylum, Immigration and Nationality Act 2006, all prospective 
employees are asked to supply evidence of their eligibility to work in the UK.  References are also 
requested and followed up.

• Agency Workers - the Council uses only reputable employment agencies to source labour 
and verifies the practices of any new agency it is using before accepting workers from that agency.

• Pay - the Council operates a Job Evaluation Scheme to ensure that all employees are paid 
fairly and equitably.  As part of its commitment to being a good employer, the Council has paid the 
Living Wage or more to its employees since 2013.  The Council is an accredited Living Wage 
Employer, meaning that the approach has been extended to relevant contracted staff as those 
contracts have come up for renewal.

• Employee Code of Conduct - the Council’s Employee Code of Conduct makes clear to 
employees the actions and behaviours expected of them when representing the Council.  The 
Council strives to maintain the highest standards of employee conduct and ethical behaviour and 
breaches are investigated.

• Whistleblowing - the Council encourages all its employees, customers and other business 
partners to report and concerns related to the direct activities or the supply chains of the Council.  
The Council’s whistleblowing procedure is designed to make it easy for employees to make 
disclosures, without fear of retaliation.

Page 34



 

 

Anti-Slavery Charter

The Council have also recently signed up to the Anti-Slavery Charter which sets out basic measures 
that states, businesses and societies must take to end slavery across the globe.

Supplier adherence to our values 

The Council is committed to a zero tolerance of slavery and human trafficking. Any supplier or 
potential supplier who does not adhere to these values or is found not to be compliant will be 
suspended and removed from the Council’s supplier list and will not be considered for future supply 
unless they are able to demonstrate full adherence with the requirements of the Modern Slavery 
Act. 

Training 

To ensure high level of understanding of the risks of modern slavery and human trafficking the 
Council provide training to officers prior as part of contract monitoring and procurement processes 
on a one to one basis.

Training has been undertaken with the Partnerships Team through the membership of Staffordshire 
Safeguarding Children’s Board (SSCB) and will be disseminated over the coming months to the 
relevant Officers and Members within the organisation. 

What we are going to do in the future 

The Council expresses its commitment to work towards greater transparency toward the 
people/officers working on the Council’s supply chain.  We are committed to developing a supply 
chain code of practice to which all our strategic and high value suppliers will need to abide by.

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

                           FINANCE, ASSETS AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

            Work Programme 2018/19

                      Chair: Councillor Mike Stubbs

                         Vice-Chair: Councillor Sarah Pickup

Members: Burnett, John Cooper, Fear, Fox-Hewitt, Harrison, B. Johnson, Kearon, Proctor and P. Waring 

Portfolio Holders covering the Committee’s remit:

Councillor S Tagg, Leader – Corporate and Service Improvement, People and Partnerships 

Councillor Stephen Sweeney - Deputy Leader – Finance and Efficiency

The following services fall within the remit of this Scrutiny Committee:

Corporate Strategy Revenue and Capital Budgets

Council Structure and Democracy Surplus Assets

External Partnerships (including Newcastle Partnership, 
Staffs. Strategic Partnership, Stoke on Trent and 
Staffordshire LEP, Town Centre BID and Constellation 
Partnership)

Financial Monitoring

District Deal Internal Audit

Economic Development Strategy Procurement

Human Resources and Payroll Treasury Management

Keele Deal Revenues and Benefits

LAPs Increasing Revenue Generation

Localism Performance Management and Risk Champion

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 6



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Customer and ICT Services Licensing (incl Taxis)

Communications and Website Financial Inclusion (incl Living wage)

Guildhall Health and Safety Champion

Sports and Leisure Provision for Kidsgrove Car Parks

Ryecroft and Civic Hub projects

The core Work Programme is determined at the beginning of the municipal year. Issues can be added throughout the year with the 
Chair’s approval or where a new priority area comes to the Committee’s attention. 

For more information on the Committee or it’s Work Programme please contact Jayne Briscoe on 01782 742250 or at 
Jayne.briscoe@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

DATE OF MEETING ITEM BACKGROUND/OBJECTIVES
Thursday 28 June 2018 Work Programme To discuss the work programme and potential topics that 

Committee members would like to scrutinise over the 
forthcoming year

Work Programme To discuss the work programme and progress of scrutiny activity 
and to consider any amendment/additions to the Programme

Thursday 20 September 2018

Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2018/19 - Update
Work Programme To discuss the work programme and progress of scrutiny activity 

and to consider any amendment/additions to the Programme
Treasury Management 
Strategy 2019/20
Revenue and Capital Budgets 
2019/20 -  Progress/Update

Monday 17 December 2018

Scale of Fees and Charges 
2019/20

P
age 38

mailto:Jayne.briscoe@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk


Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Thursday 21 March 2019 Work Programme To evaluate and review the work undertaken during 2018/19
Thursday 27 June 2019 Work Programme To discuss the work programme and potential topics that 

Committee members would like to scrutinise over the 
forthcoming year

Suggestions for potential future items:

1. Items previously considered by the Economic Development and Enterprise Scrutiny Committee:
 Ryecroft Development
 Town Centre Development
 District Deal

2. Guildhall – Future Use (suggested as appropriate for September 2018 meeting)
3. Asset Management Strategy – Update (suggested as appropriate for September 2018 meeting)
4. The Council’s Corporate Health and Safety Policy (Review due 2018/19)
5. Taxi Licensing - (Review of Policy being led by Public Protection Committee)
6. LAPs
7. Lyme Lottery

 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	4 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2018/19 - UPDATE
	MTFS covering report Cabinet 171018
	201920 Medium Term Financial Strategy

	5 MODERN SLAVERY UPDATE REPORT
	6 WORK PROGRAMME

